
AGENDA 
CITY OF BELTON  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 21, 2023 - 5:00 P.M. CITY 

HALL ANNEX, 520 MAIN STREET 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 16, 2022, BOARD OF ZONING
ADJUSTMENT MEETING

IV. PUBLIC HEARING

A. VAR-2023-01: To consider a request for a variance to Section 4-1(b)(1) to allow
an accessory dwelling unit to be constructed in the front yard of property
addressed as 8011 E. 155th St.

V. OTHER BUSINESS

VI. ADJOURNMENT

001



 11.16.2022 Board of Zoning Adjustment Meeting Minutes  

Minutes of Meeting 
Belton Board of Zoning Adjustment 

Belton City Hall Annex, 520 Main Street 
November 16, 2022 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Hubbard called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
ATTENDANCE 

Board:  Chairman Hubbard, Keith Parks, Phil Trued, Wilma Darlington and Rusty Sullivan 
 
Absent:  N/A 
 
Staff: Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director; and Madison Rust, Development Technician 
 
Guests: N/A 

 
MINUTES 
Mr. Parks moved to approve the minutes of the October 4, 2021, Board of Zoning Adjustment meeting. Mr. Trued 
seconded the motion. All members present voted in favor, and the motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
To consider a request for a variation to reduce the front and side setbacks to allow the installation of a 
monument sign at the northeast corner of the property at 124 Cunningham Pkwy, known as Legacy Office 
Suites. (This public hearing has been postponed. The public hearing will be re-noticed if/when a new date is 
determined.) 

Mr. Wright explained to the board the reasoning for postponing the public hearing. During the review process, 
after the public hearing was formally noticed, staff discovered that the proposed sign was shown in a 
utility/drainage easement, a sign (or any other structure) is not able to be placed in a drainage easement, so a 
variance would not be able to be granted for such. Staff is working with the applicant to find another solution to 
hopefully be able to install the sign outside of the easement. A variance could potentially be required still based 
on the unique layout of the site. Staff does anticipate that the application will be withdrawn, and if the applicant 
does decide to proceed with a new plan, a new application will be brought forward at that time.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Discussion about developing a meeting schedule for the Board of Zoning Adjustment.  
 
Mr. Wright explained that staff thought it would be easier for the board members if a monthly scheduled was 
established in order to better plan public hearings. It would also assist staff in better communicating the process 
to applicants. There could be a standard date scheduled once a month, but staff would communicate in advance 
if that meeting would be cancelled or not. More than likely, there would not be monthly meetings, but it would 
be helpful to all involved to have a set schedule to follow. Staff and board members agreed that Wednesdays are 
favorable for meeting dates. Ms. Hubbard expressed she would prefer the 3rd Wednesday of each month. The 
board also agreed that 5:00 P.M. is a preferrable start time. Additionally, Mr. Wright expressed there are currently 

002



 11.16.2022 Board of Zoning Adjustment Meeting Minutes  

three vacancies for alternates that are currently open. Staff is working on hopefully filling those alternate 
positions, that way in the event of a member being unable to attend, an alternate could step in for them.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Parks moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Darlington seconded the motion. All members voted in favor and 
the meeting adjourned at 5:09 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

003



8011 E 155th St (Variance - ADU) – Page 1 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION STAFF REPORT 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT: JUNE 21, 2023 
 

 PROJECT:  8011 E 155TH st aDU Variance 
  

SITE LOCATION: PROJECT REQUEST: 
 

8011 E 155th St Variance - ADU 
 

= 

 

 Project summary 
 

CURRENT ZONING/USE: PROPOSED USE: 
A  Agriculture, Residential Accessory Dwelling Unit 

 
 

PROPOSED DEVLOPMENT: LAND AREA: 
Construct an ADU in the front 
yard of the property 8.24 Acres 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPLICATION:  
Property Owner – Curt & Tammy Admire 
Applicant – Curt Admire 
General Contractor – Brooks May / City Wide Maintenance 

 

CONTEXTUAL DESCRIPTION: 
An application was filed by Curt Admire for a variance for the 
construction of a 988 sqft accessory dwelling unit in the front 
yard of the property. UDC Sec. 4-1 (b) (1) requires all accessory 
structures to be located outside of an established front yard. 
A variance is requested to allow the accessory structure to be 
built in an established front yard. 

 Staff recommendation 
STAFF RECOMMENDS  APPROVAL SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS 

004



8011 E 155th St (Variance - ADU) – Page 2 
 
 

 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The applicant and property owner is requesting to construct an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) in the established front 
yard of the property. The proposed ADU would be located North of the principal structure, approximately 20-ft North of 
the tree line and 60-ft East of the rear property line, as shown in the image. The proposed ADU is 980-sqft, 2 bedrooms, 
and utilizes existing utilities. The ADU would be placed on a slab foundation and built to City Standards following the 2018 
building code and other applicable setback requirements. 
 
To accommodate the ADU, the applicant is requesting a variance from the following: 
UDC Section 4-1(b)(1) – No accessory structures or uses shall be located within a required or established front yard, nor 
closer than five feet from any side or rear lot line, unless otherwise provided by these regulations. The applicant is 
requesting a variance to allow an accessory structure in the front yard.  
 
During Staff review, the proposed structure meets all other UDC requirements as they pertain to accessory structures and 
accessory dwelling units. 
 
 

 FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
Pursuant to UDC Section 2-118(g)(3), A request for a variance may be granted upon a finding of the Board that all of the 
following conditions have been met. The Board will make a determination on each condition, and the finding will be entered 
into the record, provided that all of the following conditions are met in the specific case. 
 
The variance application submitted by the applicant addresses the required conditions as follows: 
 
Uniqueness-The need for a variance must be caused by a condition which is unique to the property in question, and not 
ordinarily found in the same zoning district.  
 
The applicant states that due to his flag-shaped lot, any proposed location would not meet the UDC standards of having 
the ADU outside of the front yard. 
 
Staff agrees that based on the current available space on the lot and the orientation of the primary structure, this is the 
most reasonable location on the property to construct an ADU that is adjacent to the property’s driveway to provide 
access. 
 
Impact on Surrounding Properties-The granting of the variance will not adversely impact the rights of adjacent property 
owners. 
 
The applicant states that adjacent property will not be impacted by the placement of the ADU due to it exceeding setback 
requirements on all four sides. The proposed ADU will also match the existing structure on the lot. 
 
Staff agrees that based on the proposed location, adjacent properties will not be negatively impacted by the structure. 

 
 

Unnecessary Hardship-The Strict Application of the UDC standards will cause an Unnecessary Hardship or Practical 
Difficulty to the Property Owner: 
 

005



8011 E 155th St (Variance - ADU) – Page 3 
 
 

The applicant states that the layout of the property line does not accommodate an ADU to be placed within the required 
yard. 
 
Staff agrees that based on the existing conditions of the lot, it would be almost impossible to locate the ADU outside of 
the front yard and meet all setback requirements. 
  
Impact on Public Health, Safety, and Welfare- The variance should not have any adverse impact on the public health, 
safety, and general welfare of residents. 
 
The applicant states the proposed ADU will have no adverse effect on the public health, safety, welfare, or the line of site 
triangle for vehicles. Other than being located in the front yard, the proposed ADU will be within zoning ordinance 
regulations. 
 
Staff agrees that the construction of the ADU won’t have any negative impacts on health, safety, or welfare of the 
community. 
 
 

 Staff recommendation 
 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Variance for an ADU to be placed in the front yard at 8011 E 155th St. The 
recommendation is subject to the following conditions:  

1. The Variance for the ADU to be placed in the front yard at 8011 E 155th St is hereby approved, as shown on the 
preliminary site plan provided by Curt Admire. 

2. All building codes and zoning requirements shall be met during building permit review. 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT ALTERNATIVES 

1. Motion to approve the Variance as requested, with or without any conditions, if the required “findings of fact” 
are determined. 

2. Motion to approve a lesser Variance than requested, with or without any conditions, if the required “findings of 
fact” are determined. 

3. Motion to deny the Variance as requested, if the required “findings of fact” cannot be determined. 
4. Motion to continue the Variance application and request additional information. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Project Narrative – 1 page  
2. Preliminary Site Plan – 1 page 

006



The reason we are asking for the variance is our house in the far SW corner of the 8.24 acres 
facing out. There is no room to place an ADU in our “back yard.”  
 
Where we are proposing to place the ADU is still several hundred feet from our neighbor to the 
north maintaining their privacy. No other neighbor would be affected in any way by the ADU. 
 
Without approval of the variance, we will not be able to add any structure to the 8.24 acres 
given its unique shape and virtually no “back yard.” 
 
The ADU will mirror the main house in siding, color and roof and will utilize the same utilities. 
The current driveway will be utilized to get to the ADU so landscape will not be affected (we will 
add a small drive off the current one at the house going south to north). I see little to no 
increase in traffic and expect nothing more than a “mother in law” ADU. We did vacate the 
shared driveway last year and made our driveway a private drive so no neighbors will be 
affected by anyone. 
 
Finally, the ADU will be a 988 sq ft home for guest/friends/family to stay as they visit. It’s 
condition will mirror the main house and upkeep the same. We are proposing a location as close 
to our “back yard” as possible and the greatest distance from all neighbors. 
 
Thank you for this consideration. 

Curt Admire 
cadmire@gocitywide.com 

007



008



009


	06.21.2023 Agenda Out.pdf
	CITY HALL ANNEX, 520 MAIN STREET

	11.16.2022 BOZA Minutes.pdf
	Variance - 8011 E 155th_Staff Report.pdf
	Proof of Public Notice.pdf



